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(c) Violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1006/Fraudulent Receipt of Benefits from HUD
through Mortgage Company Transactions

497. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

498. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, RDF, RDH, DMS, MEDEIROS and KANE under FIRREA,
12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

499. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, RDF, RDH, DMS, MEDEIROS and KANE and others violated 18 U.S.C. § 1006,
and aided and abetted violations of § 1006, see § 2 by participating, sharing or receiving money,
property or benefits, derived from the defrauding of the United States, through the acts of
Mortgage Source, a mortgage company.

500. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, RDF, RDH, DMS, MEDEIROS and KANE’s violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1006, the
United States is owed civil penalties pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. §1833a(a) and (c)(1).

(d)  Conspiracy to Violate 18 U.S.C. § 1006/Fraudulent Receipt of Benefits from
HUD through Mortgage Company Transactions

501. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

502. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, RDF, RDH, DMS, MEDEIROS and KANE under FIRREA,

12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

503. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, RDF, RDH, DMS, MEDEIROS and KANE and others violated 18 U.S.C. § 1006 by

conspiring to participate, share or receive money, property or benefits, derived from the
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defrauding of the United States, through the acts of Mortgage Source, a mortgage company.
504. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,

HAUVER, RDF, RDH, DMS, MEDEIROS and KANE’s violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1006, the

United States is owed civil penalties pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. §1833a(a) and (c)(1).

(e) Violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1014/Making False Statements or Reports for the
Purpose of Influencing the FHA

505. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

506. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, RDF, RDH, DMS, MEDEIROS and KANE under FIRREA,
12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

507.  As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, RDF, RDH, DMS, MEDEIROS and KANE and others violated 18 U.S.C. § 1014,
and aided and abetted violations of § 1014, see § 2, by knowingly making false statements and
reports for the purpose of influencing action of the FHA, to wit: by concealing that the borrowers
to whom Mortgage Source made mortgage loans could not make payments on the loan, by
artificially suppressing Mortgage Source’s comparative default ratio and providing the falsely
low comparative default ratios to FHA. By doing so, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, RDF, RDH, DMS, MEDEIROS and KANE and others
sought to avoid FHA review and termination of Mortgage Source’s ability to originate FHA-
insured loans, and for FHA-insured loans originated by Mortgage Source to continue to qualify
for payment of claims for FHA mortgage insurance.

508. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,

HAUVER, RDF, RDH, DMS, MEDEIROS and KANE’s violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1014, the
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United States is owed civil penalties pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c)(1).

) Conspiracy to Violate 18 U.S.C. § 1014/Making False Statements or Reports
for the Purpose of Influencing the FHA

509. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

510. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, RDF, RDH, DMS, MEDEIROS and KANE under FIRREA,
12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

511.  As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, RDF, RDH, DMS, MEDEIROS and KANE and others violated 18 U.S.C. § 1014 by
conspiring to make false statements and reports for the purpose of influencing action of the FHA,
to wit: by concealing that the borrowers to whom Mortgage Source made mortgage loans could
not make payments on the loan, by artificially suppressing Mortgage Source’s comparative
default ratio and providing the falsely low comparative default ratios to FHA. By doing so, DEL
SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, RDF, RDH, DMS,
MEDEIROS and KANE and others sought to avoid FHA review and termination of Mortgage
Source’s ability to originate FHA-insured loans, and for FHA-insured loans originated by
Mortgage Source to continue to qualify for payment of claims for FHA mortgage insurance. |

512. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, RDF, RDH, DMS, MEDEIROS and KANE’s violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1014, the

United States is owed civil penalties pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. §1833a(a) and (c)(1).
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FOURTEENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Gross Negligence: Mortgage Source, LLC

513. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

514. Defendants MEDEIROS and KANE owed the United States a duty of reasonable
care and a duty to conduct due diligence.

515.  As set forth above, Defendants MEDEIROS and KANE breached their duties to
the United States.

516. As set forth above, Defendants MEDEIROS and KANE and others recklessly
disregarded their duties to the United States.

517. Asaresult of Defendants MEDEIROS and KANE’s gross negligence, the United
States paid insurance claims, and has and will incur losses relating to the FHA-insured mortgage
originated by Defendants MEDEIROS and KANE.

518. As aresult of the foregoing, the United States is entitled to compensatory and
punitive damages, in an amount to be determined at trial.

FIFTEENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Unjust Enrichment: Mortgage Source, LLC
519. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully

set forth in this paragraph.

520. Defendants DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON, RDF,
RDH, DMS, MEDEIROS and KANE have been unjustly enriched to the detriment of the United
States, by fraudulently and artificially suppressing the comparative default ratio of Mortgage
Source, so that Mortgage Source would be able to continue originating FHA-insured mortgages;

and by delaying the eventual default of FHA-insured mortgages, so that the United States would
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be subject to claims under the mortgages’ FHA mortgage insurance.

521. Asaresult, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON, RDF,
RDH, DMS, MEDEIROS and KANE are liable to the United States, in an amount to be
determined at trial.

SIXTEENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Indemnification: Mortgage Source, LLC

522.  The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

523. Defendants MEDEIROS and KANE owed the United States a duty of reasonable
care and a duty to not defraud the United States.

524. As set forth above, Defendants MEDEIROS and KANE breached their duties to
the United States.

525. Asaresult of these Defendants’ breaching their duties to the United States, the
United States has paid and will pay future mortgage insurance claims and incur future losses,
relating to FHA-insured mortgages endorsed by MEDEIROS and KANE.

526. By virtue of the above, the United States is entitled to indemnification of its losses
relating to FHA-insured mortgages endorsed by Defendants MEDEIROS and KANE.

SEVENTEENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Violations of FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a: Rainy Day Defendants and Continental
Mortgage Bankers, Inc.

(a) Violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1343/Wire Fraud as to Financial Institutions
527. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

528. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
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LUDLOW, RDF, RDH, STASHIN and CONTINENTAL under FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

529. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL and others violated 18 U.S.C. § 1343, and aided and abetted
violations of § 1343, see § 2, by devising a continuing scheme and artifice to defraud J.P.
Morgan Chase and Wells Fargo of, to wit: monies owed for the repurchase of those mortgage
loans identified in Exhibit G that had suffered an early payment default, monies owed for
indemnification of losses on said loans, and penalties due and owing J.P. Morgan Chase and
Wells Fargo due to early payment defaults of mortgages in default.

530. For the purpose of executing said scheme and artifice and attempting to do so,
DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH, STASHIN and CONTINENTAL
transmitted and caused to be transmitted in interstate commerce by means of wire
communication, certain signs, signals and sounds, specifically the conduct set out at paragraphs
236-242 and Exhibit G. |

531. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL’s violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1343, the United States is entitled to
a civil penalty as required by law for each of the 8 violations set forth at Exhibit G, pursuant to
FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c)(2).

(b)  Conspiracy to Violate 18 U.S.C. § 1343/Wire Fraud as to Financial
Institutions

532. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

533. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, RDF, RDH, STASHIN and CONTINENTAL under FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

534. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
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STASHIN and CONTINENTAL and others violated 18 U.S.C. § 1343 by conspiring to devise a
continuing scheme and artifice to defraud J.P. Morgan Chase and Wells Fargo of, to wit: monies
owed for the repurchase of mortgage loans that had suffered an early payment default, monies
owed for indemnification of losses on said loans, and penalties due and owing J.P. Morgan
Chase and Wells Fargo due to early payment defaults of mortgages in default.

535.  For the purpose of executing said scheme and artifice and attempting to do so,
DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH, STASHIN and CONTINENTAL
transmitted and caused to be transmitted in interstate commerce by means of wire
communication, certain signs, signals and sounds, specifically the conduct set out at paragraphs
236-242 and Exhibit G.

536. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL' s violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1343, the United States is entitled to
a civil penalty as required by law for each of the 8 violations set forth at Exhibit G, pursuant to
FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (¢)(2).

(¢) Violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1344/Bank Fraud

537. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

538. The United States seeks relief against DEL. SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, RDF, RDH, STASHIN and CONTINENTAL under FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

539. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL and others violated 18 U.S.C. § 1344 , and aided and abetted
violations of § 1344, see § 2, by devising a continuing scheme and artifice to defraud the
financial institutions, to wit: J.P. Morgan Chase and Wells Fargo of money and property under

their custody and control by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations or
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promises; said money or property being monies owed for the repurchase of mortgage loans that
had suffered an early payment default, monies owed for indemnification of losses on said loans,
and penalties due and owing J.P. Morgan Chase and Wells Fargo due to early payment defaults
of mortgages in default.

540. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL’s violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1344, the United States is entitled to
a civil penalty as required by law for each of the 8 violations alleged herein, pursuant to
FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c)(1).

(d) Conspiracy to Violate 18 U.S.C. § 1344/Bank Fraud

541. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

542. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, RDF, RDH, STASHIN and CONTINENTAL under FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

543.  As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL and others violated 18 U.S.C. § 1344 by conspiring to devise a
continuing scheme and artifice to defraud financial institutions, to wit: J.P. Morgan Chase and
Wells Fargo of money and property under their custody and control by means of false and
fraudulent pretenses, representations or promises; said money or property being monies owed for
the repurchase of mortgage loans that had suffered an early payment default, monies owed for
indemnification of losses on said loans, and penalties due and owing J.P. Morgén Chase and
Wells Fargo due to early payment defaults of mortgages in default.

544. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL’s violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1344, the United States is entitled to

a civil penalty as required by law for each of the 8 violations alleged herein, pursuant to
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FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c)(1).

(e)  Violations 18 U.S.C. § 1005 /Fraudulent Receipt Money, Profits or Benefits
from HUD by Financial Institution Acts or Transactions

545. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

546. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, RDF, RDH, STASHIN and CONTINENTAL under FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

547. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL and others violated 18 U.S.C. § 1005, and aided and abetted
violations of § 1005, see § 2, by participating, sharing, or receiving money, profits or benefits
derived from the defrauding of an agency of the United States of America, to wit: HUD, through
the transactions and acts of financial institutions, to wit: J.P. Morgan Chase and Wells Fargo.

548. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL’s violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1005, the United States is entitled to
a civil penalty as required by law, pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c)(1).

(f)  Conspiracy to Violate 18 U.S.C. § 1005/Fraudulent Receipt of Money,
Profits or Benefits from HUD by Financial Institution Acts or Transactions.

549. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

550. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, RDF, RDH, STASHIN and CONTINENTAL under FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

551.  As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL and others violated 18 U.S.C. § 1005 by conspiring to
participate, share, or receive money, profit or benefits derived from the defrauding of an agency

of the United States of America, to wit: HUD, through the transactions and acts of financial
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institutions, to wit: J.P. Morgan Chase and Wells Fargo.

552. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL’s violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1005, the United States is entitled to
a civil penalty as required by law, pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c)(1).

(2) Violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1006/Fraudulent Receipt of Money, Profits or
Benefits from HUD by Mortgage Lender’s Acts or Transactions

553. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

554. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, RDF, RDH, STASHIN and CONTINENTAL under FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

555.  As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL and others violated 18 U.S.C. § 1006, and aided and abetted
violations of § 1006, see § 2, by participating, sharing or receiving money, profits or benefits
derived from the defrauding of the United States, through the acts of CONTINENTAL, a
mortgage company.

556. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL’s violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1006, the United States is entitled to
a civil penalty as required by law, pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c¢)(1).

(h)  Conspiracy to Violate 18 U.S.C. § 1006/Fraudulent Receipt of Money,
Profits or Benefits from HUD by Mortgage Lender’s Acts or Transactions

557. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.
558. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,

LUDLOW, RDF, RDH, STASHIN and CONTINENTAL under FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.
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559.  As set forth above, DEL. SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL and others violated 18 U.S.C. § 1006 by conspiring to
participate, share or receive money, profit or benefits derived from the defrauding of the United
States, through the acts of CONTINENTAL, a mortgage company.

560. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN, MANZO and CONTINENTAL’s violations of 18 U.S.C.§ 1006, the United States is
entitled to a civil penalty as required by law, pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and
(c)(1).

(i) Violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1014/Making False Statements or Reports for the
Purpose of Influencing the FHA

561. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

562. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, RDF, RDH, STASHIN and CONTINENTAL under FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

563. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL and others violated 18 U.S.C. § 1014, and aided and abetted
violations of § 1014, see § 2, by knowingly making false statements and reports for the purpose
of influencing action of the FHA, to wit: by concealing that the borrowers to whom the
CONTINENTAL had made mortgage loans could not make payments on the loans. By
concealing that the borrowers could not pay their mortgages, by CONTINENTAL’s payment of
the mortgages through RDF, DEL. SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL and others artificially suppressed CONTINENTAL’s
comparative default ratio, as compiled and computed by the FHA. By doing so, DEL SONTRO,

CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH, STASHIN and CONTINENTAL and others sought
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to avoid termination of the CONTINENTAL s ability to originate FHA-insured loans, and
further to continue the ability of FHA-insured loans originated by CONTINENTAL to qualify
for payment of claims for FHA mortgage insurance.

564. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL’s violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1014, the United States is entitled to
a civil penalty as required by law, pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c)(1).

(J)  Conspiracy to Violate 18 U.S.C. § 1014/False Statements for the Purpose of
Influencing the FHA

565. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

566. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, RDF, RDH, STASHIN and CONTINENTAL under FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

567. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL and others violated 18 U.S.C. § 1014 by conspiring to make
false statements and reports for the purpose of influencing action of the FHA, to wit: by
concealing that the borrowers to whom the CONTINENTAL had made mortgage loans could not
make payments on the loans. By concealing that the borrowers could not pay their mortgages,
by CONTINENTAL’s payment of the mortgages through RDF, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE,
SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH, STASHIN and CONTINENTAL and others artificially
suppressed CONTINENTAL’s comparative default ratio, as compiled and computed by the
FHA. By doing so, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH, STASHIN and
CONTINENTAL and others sought to avoid termination of the CONTINENTAL s ability to
originate FHA-insured loans, and further to continue the ability of FHA-insured loans originated

by CONTINENTAL to qualify for payment of claims for FHA mortgage insurance.
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568. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF, RDH,
STASHIN and CONTINENTAL?’s violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1014, the United States is entitled to
a civil penalty as required by law, pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c)(1).

EIGHTEENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Gross Negligence: Continental Mortgage Bankers, Inc.

569. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

570. Defendants STASHIN and CONTINENTAL owed the United States a duty of
reasonable care and a duty to conduct due diligence.

571. As set forth above, Defendants STASHIN and CONTINENTAL breached their
duties to the United States.

572.  As set forth above, Defendants STASHIN and CONTINENTAL recklessly
disregarded their duties to the United States.

573. As aresult of the gross negligence of Defendants STASHIN and
CONTINENTAL, the United States has paid insurance claims, and incurred losses, relating to
the FHA-insured mortgage endorsed by Defendants STASHIN and CONTINENTAL.

574.  As aresult of the foregoing, the United States is entitled to compensatory and
punitive damages, in an amount to be determined at triall.

NINETEENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Breach of Fiduciary Duty: Continental Mortgage Bankers, Inc.

575. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully

set forth in this paragraph.

576. Defendant CONTINENTAL was a fiduciary of the United States, specifically
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HUD, and owed HUD fiduciary duties.

577.  As a fiduciary, CONTINENTAL had a duty to ensure that only prompt and
accurate reporting of which borrowers were in default on their mortgages was provided to HUD.

578. As a fiduciary, CONTINENTAL had the obligation to act in the utmost good
faith, honesty, candor, integrity fairness and undivided loyalty and fidelity in its dealings with
the United States.

579. Asa fiduciary, CONTINENTAL had a duty to refrain from taking advantage of
the United States by the slightest misrepresentation, to make full and fair disclosures to the
United States of all material facts, and to take on the affirmative duty of employing reasonable
care to avoid misleading the United States in all circumstances.

580. As set forth above, CONTINENTAL breached its fiduciary duties to the United
States by willfully causing misleading, inaccurate and false information concerning mortgage
loan defaults and CONTINENTAL?’s default ratios to be provided to HUD.

581. DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, RDF and RDH aided and abetted
this breach of fiduciary duties by knowingly inducing or participating in the breach.

582.  As aresult of this breach of fiduciary duties, the United States has and will pay
insurance claims and has and will incur losses relating to FHA-insured mortgages originated by
CONTINENTAL.

583. By virtue of the above, the United States is entitled to-.compensatory and punitive
damages, in an amount to be determined at trial.

TWENTIETH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Unjust Enrichment: Continental Mortgage Bankers, Inc.

584. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
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set forth in this paragraph.

585. Defendants DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS, STASHIN and CONTINENTAL have been
unjustly enriched to the detriment of the United States, by fraudulently and artificially
suppressing the CONTINENTAL’s comparative default ratio, so that CONTINENTAL would be
able to continue originating FHA-insured mortgages; and by delaying the eventual default of
FHA-insured mortgages, so that the United States would be subject to claims under the
mortgages’ FHA mortgage insurance.

586. Asaresult, Defendants DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW,
NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS, STASHIN and CONTINENTAL
are liable to the United States, in an amount to be determined at trial.

TWENTY-FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Indemnification: Continental Mortgage Bankers, Inc.

587. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

588. Defendants STASHIN and CONTINENTAL owed the United States a duty of
reasonable care and a duty to not defraud the United States.

589. As set forth above, Defendants STASHIN and CONTINENTAL breached their
duties to the United States.

590. As aresult of these Defendants’ breaching their duties to the United States, the
United States has paid and will pay future mortgage insurance claims and incur future losses,
relating to FHA-insured mortgages endorsed by STASHIN and CONTINENTAL.

591. By virtue of the above, the United States is entitled to indemnification of its losses
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relating to FHA-insured mortgages endorsed by Defendants STASHIN and CONTINENTAL.

TWENTY-SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Violations of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1), and as amended, 31 U.S.C.
§ 3729(a)(1)(A)

Presentment of False Claims: Somerset Investors Corp.

592. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

593. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS under
the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1), and as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1)(A).

594. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS by knowingly presenting or
causing to be presented a false and fraudulent claim for payment or approval, to wit: a claim on
FHA mortgage insurance on Somerset-originated mortgages, as set forth in Exhibit H.

595. By reason of the false claim DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW,
NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS caused to be
presented, the United States has been damaged in an amount to be determined at trial, and is
entitled to a civil penalty as required by law for each violation.

TWENTY-THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Violations of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1) and (a)(3), and as amended,
31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1)(A) and (a)(1)(C)

Conspiracy to Present False Claims: Somerset Investors Corp.

596. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully

set forth in this paragraph.

597. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
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LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS under
the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1) and (a)(3), and as amended, 31 U.S.C.
§ 3729(a)(1)(a)and (a)(1)(c).

598.  As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS violated the False Claims Act by
conspiring to present, or causing to be presented a fraudulent claim for payment or approval, to
wit: a claim on FHA mortgage insurance on a Somerset-originated mortgage.

599. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS conspiring to cause the
presentment of a false claim to the United States, the United States has been damaged in an
amount to be determined at trial, and is entitled to a civil penalty as required by law for each

violation.

TWENTY-FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Violations of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(2), and as amended, 31 U.S.C.
§ 3729(a)(1)(B)

Making or Use of False Records or Statements: Somerset Investors Corp.

600. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

601. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS under
the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(2), and as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3729 (a)(1)(B).

602. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS violated the False Claims Act by

knowingly making, using, or causing to be made or used false records or statements material to
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getting a false or fraudulent claim paid or approved by the Government, to wit: false annual
certifications, and false information resulting in artificially suppressed comparative default ratios
and the underlying loans that were paid by Somerset to the Mortgage Purchasers, by DEL
SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, and
RDH.

603. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS making or using, or causing to
be made or used, false records or statements material to getting false or fraudulent claims paid or
approved by the Government, the United States has been damaged in an amount to be
determined at trial, and is entitled to a civil penalty as required by law for each violation.

TWENTY-FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Violations of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(2) and (a)(3), and as amended,
31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1)(B) and (a)(1)(C),

Conspiracy to Make or Use False Records or Statements: Somerset Investors Corp.

604. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

605. The United States seeks relief against DEL. SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS under
the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(2) and (a)(3), and as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3729
(a)(1)(b) and (a)(1)(c).

606. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS violated the False Claims Act by
conspiring to make or use, or causing to be made or used, false records or statements material to

getting a false or fraudulent claim paid or approved by the Government, to wit: false annual
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certifications, and false information resulting in the artificially suppressed comparative default
ratios and the underlying loans that were paid by Somerset Investors to the Mortgage Purchasers,
by DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND,
RDF, and RDH.

607. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS’s conspiracy to make or use or
causing to be made or used false records or statements material to getting false or fraudulent
claims paid or approved by the Government, the United States has been damaged in an amount
to be determined at trial, and is entitled to a civil penalty as required by law for each violation.

TWENTY-SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Violations of FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a: Rainy Day Defendants and Somerset Investors Corp.

(a) Violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1343/Wire Fraud as to Financial Institutions

608. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

609. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS under
FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

610. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS and others violated 18 U.S.C.

§ 1343, and aided and abetted violations of § 1343, see § 2, by devising a continuing scheme and
artifice to defraud J.P. Morgan Chase, Wells Fargo and Citibank of money and property, to wit:
monies owed for the repurchase of Somerset-originated mortgage loans that had suffered an

early payment default, monies owed for indemnification of losses on said loans, and penalties
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due and owing J.P. Morgan Chase, Wells Fargo and Citibank due to early payment defaults of
mortgages in default.

611. For the purpose of executing said scheme and artifice and attempting to do so,
DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF,
RDH, DMS and MARCUS and others transmitted and caused to be transmitted in interstate
commerce by means of wire communication, certain signs, signals and sounds, specifically the
conduct set out at paragraphs 243-250 and Exhibit H.

612. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS’s violations of 18 U.S.C.
§ 1343, the United States is entitled to a civil penalty as required by law for each of the
violations set forth at Exhibit H, pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c)(2).

(b)  Conspiracy to Violate 18 U.S.C. § 1343/Wire Fraud as to Financial
Institutions

613. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

614. The United States seeks relief against DEL. SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS under
FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

615. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS and others violated 18 U.S.C.

§ 1343 by conspiring to devise a continuing scheme and artifice to defraud J.P. Morgan Chase,
Wells Fargo and Citibank of money and property, to wit: monies owed for the repurchase of
Somerset-originated mortgage loans that had suffered an early payment default, monies owed for

indemnification of losses on said loans, and penalties due and owing J.P. Morgan Chase, Wells
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Fargo and Citibank due to early payment defaults of mortgages in default.

616. For the purpose of executing said scheme and artifice and attempting to do so,
DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF,
RDH, DMS and MARCUS and others transmitted and caused to be transmitted in interstate
commerce by means of wire communication, certain signs, signals and sounds, specifically the
conduct set out at paragraphs 226-232 and Exhibit H.

617. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS’s violations of 18 U.S.C.

§ 1343, the United States is entitled to a civil penalty as required by law for each of the
violations set forth at Exhibit H, pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c)(2).

(¢)  Violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1344/Bank Fraud

618. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

619. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS under
FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

620. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS and others violated 18 U.S.C.

§ 1344, and aided and abetted violations of § 1344, see § 2, by devising a continuing scheme and
artifice to defraud financial institutions, to wit: J.P. Morgan Chase, Wells Fargo and Citibank of
money and property under J.P. Morgan Chase, Wells Fargo and Citibank‘s custody and control,
by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations or promises; said money or property

being monies owed for the repurchase of Somerset-originated mortgage loans that had suffered
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an early payment default, monies owed for indemnification of losses on said loans, and penalties
due and owing J.P. Morgan Chase, Wells Fargo and Citibank due to early payment defaults of
Somerset-originated mortgages in default.

621. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS’s violations of 18 U.S.C.

§ 1344, the United States is entitled to a civil penalty as required by law for the violations
alleged herein, pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c)(1).

(d)  Conspiracy to Violate 18 U.S.C. § 1344/Bank Fraud

622. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

623. The United States seeks relief against DEL. SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS under
FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

624. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS and others violated 18 U.S.C.
§ 1344 by conspiring to devise a continuing scheme and artifice to defraud financial institutions,
to wit: J.P. Morgan Chase, Wells Fargo and Citibank of money and property under J.P. Morgan
Chase, Wells Fargo and Citibank*s custody and control, by means of false and fraudulent
pretenses, representations or promises; said money or property being monies owed for the
repurchase of Somerset-originated mortgage loans that had suffered an early payment default,
monies owed for indemnification of losses on said loans, and penalties due and owing J.P.
Morgan Chase, Wells Fargo and Citibank due to early payment defaults of Somerset-originated

mortgages in default.
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625. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS’s violations of 18 U.S.C.
§ 1344, the United States is entitled to a civil penalty as required by law for the violations
alleged herein, pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c)(1).

(e) Violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1005/Fraudulent Receipt of Money, Profits or
Benefits from HUD by Financial Institutions’ Transactions

626. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

627. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS under
FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

628. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS and others violated 18 U.S.C.
§ 1005, and aided and abetted violations of § 1005, see § 2, by participating, sharing, or
receiving money, profits or benefits derived from the defrauding of an agency of the United
States of America, to wit: HUD, through the transactions and acts of financial institutions, to wit:
J.P. Morgan Chase, Wells Fargo and Citibank.

629. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS’s violations of 18 U.S.C.

§ 1005, the United States is entitled to a civil penalty as required by law for the violations

alleged herein, pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c)(1).
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® Violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1005/Fraudulent Receipt of Money, Profits or
Benefits from HUD by Financial Institutions’ Transactions

630. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

631. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOIW, NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS under
FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

632. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUMI, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS and others violated 18 U.S.C.
§ 1005 by conspiring to participate, share, or receive money, profit or benefits derived from the
defrauding of an agency of the United States of America, to wit: HUD, through the transactions
and acts of financial institutions, to wit: J.P. Morgan Chase, Wells Fargo and Citibank.

633. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS’s violations of 18 U.S.C.

§ 1005, the United States is entitled to a civil penalty as required by law for the violations
alleged herein, pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c)(1).

(2) Violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1006/Fraudulent Receipt of Money, Profits or
Benefits from HUD by Mortgage Lender’s Acts or Transactions

634. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

635. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS under
FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

636. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,

HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS and others violated 18 U.S.C.
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§ 1006, and aided and abetted violations of § 1006, @ § 2, by participating, sharing or receiving
money, profits or benefits derived from the defrauding of the United States, through the acts of
Somerset, a Mortgage Lender.

637. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS’s violations of 18 U.S.C.
§ 1006, the United States is entitled to a civil penalty as required by law for the violations
alleged herein, pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c)(1).

(h)  Conspiracy to Violate 18 U.S.C. § 1006/Fraudulent Receipt of Money,
Profits or Benefits from HUD by Mortgage Lender’s Acts or Transactions

638. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

639. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS under
FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

640. As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS and others violated 18 U.S.C.
§ 1006 by conspiring to participate, share or receive money, property or benefits, derived from
the defrauding of the United States, through the acts of Somerset, a Mortgage Lender.

641. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS’s violations of 18 U.S.C.

§ 1006, the United States is entitled to a civil penalty as required by law for the violations

alleged herein, pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c)(1).
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(i) Violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1014/Making False Statements or Reports for the
Purpose of Influencing the FHA

642. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

643. The United States seeks relief against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS under
FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

644.  As set forth above, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS and others violated 18 U.S.C.
§ 1014, and aided and abetted violations of § 1014, see § 2, by knowingly making false
statements and reports for the purpose of influencing action of the FHA, to wit: by concealing
that the borrowers to whom Somerset had made mortgage loans could not make payments on the
loans. By concealing that the borrowers could not pay their mortgages, these Defendants
artificially suppressed Somerset’s comparative default ratio, as compiled and computed by the
FHA. By doing so, the RAINY DAY DEFENDANTS and others sought to avoid FHA’s
termination of Somerset’s ability to originate FHA-insured loans, and for FHA-insured loans
originated by Somerset to continue to qualify for payment of claims for FHA mortgage
insurance.

645. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS’s violations of 18 U.S.C.

§ 1014, the United States is entitled to a civil penalty as required by law for the violations

alleged herein, pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c)(1).

117



Case 2:15-cv-05576-JFB-GRB Document 1 Filed 09/28/15 Page 122 of 125 PagelD #: 122

() Conspiracy to Violate 18 U.S.C. § 1014/False Statements For the Purpose of
Influencing the FHA

646. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

647. The United States seeks relief against DEL. SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM,
LUDLOW, NAILLON, HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS under
FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a.

648. As set forth above, DEL. SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS and others violated 18 U.S.C.
§ 1014 by conspiring to make false statements and reports for the purpose of influencing action
of the FHA, to wit: by concealing that the borrowers to whom Somerset had made mortgage
loans could not make payments on the loans. By concealing that the borrowers could not pay
their mortgages, these defendants artificially suppressed Somerset Investors’ comparative default
ratio, as compiled and computed by the FHA. By doing so, the RAINY DAY DEFENDANTS
and others sought to avoid FHA’s termination of Somerset’s ability to originate FHA-insured
loans, and for FHA-insured loans originated by Somerset to continue to qualify for payment of
claims for FHA mortgage insurance.

649. By reason of DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON,
HAUVER, SCHWEDLAND, RDF, RDH, DMS and MARCUS’s violations of 18 U.S.C.

§ 1014, the United States is entitled to a civil penalty as required by law for the violations

alleged herein, pursuant to FIRREA, 12 U.S.C. § 1833a(a) and (c)(1).
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TWENTY-SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Gross Negligence: Somerset Investors Corp.

650. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

651. Defendant MARCUS owed the United States a duty of reasonable care and a duty
to conduct due diligence.

652. As set forth above, Defendant MARCUS breached his duties to the United States.

653. As set forth above, Defendant MARCUS recklessly disregarded his duties to the
United States.

654. As aresult of Defendant MARCUS'’s gross negligence, the United States has paid
insurance claims and incurred losses relating to the FHA-insured mortgages endorsed by
Defendant MARCUS. |

655. Asaresult of the foregoing, the United States is entitled to compensatory and
punitive damages, in an amount to be determined at trial.

TWENTY-EIGHTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Unjust Enrichment: Somerset Investors Corp.

656. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

657. Defendants DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON, RDF,
RDH, DMS and MARCUS have been unjustly enriched to the detriment of the United States, by
fraudulently and artificially suppressing the comparative default ratio of Somerset, so that
Somerset would be able to continue originating FHA-insured mortgages; and by said
Defendants’ delaying the eventual default of FHA-insured mortgages, so that the United States

would be subject to claims under the mortgages” FHA mortgage insurance.
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658. Asaresult, DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON, RDF,
RDH, DMS and MARCUS are liable to the United States, in an amount to be determined at trial.
TWENTY-NINTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Indemnification: Somerset Investors Corp.

659. The United States incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 310 as if fully
set forth in this paragraph.

660. Defendant MARCUS owed the United States a duty of reasonable care and a duty
to not defraud the United States.

661. As set forth above, Defendant MARCUS breached his duties to the United States.

662. As aresult of Defendant MARCUS breaching his duties to the United States, the
United States has and will pay future mortgage insurance claims and incur future losses, related
to FHA-insured mortgages originated by Somerset.

663. By virtue of the above, the United States is entitled to indemnification of its losses

relating to FHA-insured mortgages endorsed by Defendant MARCUS.
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CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, the United States respectfully requests that Judgment be entered in its
favor and against DEL SONTRO, CLUTE, SHRUM, LUDLOW, NAILLON, SCHWEDLAND,
HAUVER, RDF, RDH, DMS, FRANKLIN FIRST, KANE, MEDEIROS, ASSINI, BAINES,
BERTMAN, STASHIN, CONTINENTAL and MARCUS, as follows:

a. For treble the United States damages for past claims paid by the United States and
damages which the United States sustained because of the Defendants’ acts, in an
amount to be determined at trial;

b. For such civil penalties as are required by law;
c. For an award of costs pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(3);
d. For an award of such further relief as is proper.

Dated: Brooklyn, New York
September 28, 2015

KELLY T. CURRIE
ACTING UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
Eastern District of New York

o ol NGl

EDWARD K'NEWMAN

JOHN VAGELATOS

ROBERT W. SCHUMACHER
Assistant United States Attorneys
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1. (a) PLAINTIFFS DEFENDANTS
Rainy Day Holdings, LLC, Rainy Day Foundation, Inc., Default Mitigation
United States of America Services, LLC, Rick Del Sontro, Robert Clute, Michael Shrum, Chris Naillon,
William (Chris) Hauver, Kelly Schwedland, Todd Ludlow et al.
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(¢) Atiomeys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number) Attomeys (If Known)
Edward Newman, John Vagelatos, Robert Schumacher
United States Attorney's Office, Eastern District of New York,
271 Cadman Plaza East, Brooklyn, NY 11201, (718)254-7000
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CERTIFICATION OF ARBITRATION ELIGIBILITY

Locat Arbitration Rule 83.10 provides that with certain exceptions, actions seeking money damages only in an amount not in excess of $150,000,
exclusive of interest s¥d0sts, are eligible for compulsory arbitration. The amount of damages is presumed to be below the threshold amount unless a

certification to the "contrary is filed.

I, Edwand K. Newman , counsel for the United States of America _ do hereby certify that the above captioned civil action is
ineligible for compulsory arbitration for the following reason(s}:

x] monetary damages sought are in excess of $150,000, exclusive of interest and costs,
O the complaint seeks injunctive relief,
O the matter is otherwise ineligible for the following reason

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT - FEDERAL RULFES CIVIL PROCEDURE 7.1

Identify any parent corporation and any publicly held corperation that owns 10% or more or its stocks:

RELATED CASE STATEMENT (Section VIII on the Front of this Form)

Please list all cases that are arguably related pursuant to Division of Business Rule 50.3.1 in Section VII on the front of this form. Rule 50.3.1 (a)
provides that “A civil case is “related” to another civil case for purposes of this guideline when, because of the similarity of facts and legal issues or
because the cases arise from the same transactions ot events, a substantial saving of judicial resources is likely to result from assigning both cases to the
same judge and magistrate judge.” Rule 50.3.1 (b} provides that “ A civil case shall not be deemed “related™ to another civil case merely because the civil
case: (A) involves identical legal issues, or (B) involves the same parties.” Rule 50.3.1 (c) further provides that “Presumptively, and subject to the power
of a judge to determine otherwise pursuant to paragraph (d), civil cases shall not be deemed to be “related” unless both cases are still pending before the
court.”

NY-E DIVISION OF BUSINESS RULE 50.1(d)(2)

1.} Is the civil action being filed in the Eastern District removed from a New York State Court located in Nassau or Suffolk
County: NO

2) If you answered “no” above:
a) Did the events or omissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in Nassau or Suffolk
County? YES

b) Did the events of omissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in the Eastern
Distriet? YES

If your answer to question 2 (b) is “No,” does the defendant (or a majority of the defendants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau or
Suffolk County, or, in an interpleader action, does the claimant (or a majority of the claimants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau

or Suffolk County?
(Note: A corporation shall be considered a resident of the County in which it has the most significant contacts).

BAR ADMISSION

I am currently admitted in the Eastern District of New York and currently a member in good standing of the bar of this court.
Yes D No

Are you currently the subject of any disciplinary action (s) in this or any other state or federal court?
Yes (If yes, please explain) No

I certify the accuracy ofiall ation provided above.

A
Signature: _




